SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
| NTERI M
Sept enber 15, 2015
10: 03 a. m

[ Note: The neeting was held in Anchorage, Alaska at the
Anchorage Legislative Information Ofice]

10: 03: 14 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair MucKinnon called the Senate Finance Committee
meeting to order at 10:03 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Co-Chair

Senator Pete Kelly, Co-Chair

Senator Peter M cciche, Vice-Chair (via tel econference)
Senator Cick Bishop (via tel econference)

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Donny O son

ALSO PRESENT

Terry Schuster, Senior Associate, Pew Charitable Trust,
Public Safety Performance Project; Chief Justice Alex
Bryner, Chair, Alaska Crimnal Justice Comm ssion.

SUVMVARY

PRESENTATI ON:  ALASKA PRI SON GROMN DRI VERS AND COSTS

NPRESENTATI ON: ALASKA PRI SON GROMN DRI VERS AND COSTS

10: 04: 21 AM

TERRY SCHUSTER, SEN OR ASSOCI ATE, PEW CHARI TABLE TRUST,
PUBLI C SAFETY PERFORVMANCE PRQIECT, introduced hinself.

Co-Chair MacKinnon queried any opening remarks for the
conm ttee to consider.



CH EF JUSTI CE ALEX BRYNER, CHAIR, ALASKA CRI M NAL JUSTI CE
COW SSI ON, hi ghl i ght ed sonme backgr ound i nformation
regarding the Criminal Justice Commission. He stated that
the comm ssion was created as a bipartisan organization
under SB 64 in the previous vyear's |legislature. The
conmmi ssion was nodel ed under efforts in a nunmber of other
states. He stated that SB 64 created a comm ssion that
wi dely represented all types of individuals from around the
state who were involved in crimnal justice. The comm ssion
included a retired or active nenber of the Al aska Suprene
Court. He stated that he had been selected to fill that
position. He was retired fromthe Suprene Court since 2007,
and had served previously as Chief Justice for one term He
stated that he have served for 17 years as Chief Judge of
the Alaska Court of Appeals. He had previously served on
the State District Court, which was the trial court from
another jurisdiction. He felt that he had considerable
background in crimnal law. He furthered that there were
two other appointees from the superior court. He stated
that | egislators were also on the conm ssion.

10: 10: 37 AM

M. Bryner explained that the commssion's duty was to
formul ate recommendations to inprove crimnal justice and
sent enci ng practices, i ncl udi ng rehabilitation and
restitution by considering a list of various topics as
outlined in SB 64. He |ooked at Section 646 of SB 64, and
noted that the commssion was required to solicit and
consider information from a variety of constituencies from
across the state, and base its reconmendations on the
seriousness of the offense; the offender's prior crimnal
history; the need to rehabilitate offenders; the need for
confinement to prevent future harm to victim public
safety, and order; the deterrent effect of sentencing of
offenders and others; the effect of sentencing as an
expression of community condemation; and the need to
elimnate unjustified sentencing disparity.

10:14: 46 AM

M. Bryner explained that there were various groups within
the comm ssion, which examned various alternatives to
i nprisonnment and sinple incarceration. He shared that there
were some groups to study the current state of affairs in
the rural areas of the state. There was also a group that

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 09/ 15/15 10: 03 A M



focused on barriers to reentry. He shared that Al aska |aw
held adm nistrative rules and statutes that were full of
numerous provisions that limted, restricted, or guided the
rights of those who were convicted of a crinme. He felt that
many of those |aws unnecessarily restricted the ability of
an offender to becone a productive nenber of the community.
He stated that there was a group to exam ne the data, wth
t he focus on devel opi ng evi dence based concl usi ons.

10: 21: 01 AM

Co- Chair MacKinnon shared that Alaska had invested $327
mllion in Departnent of Corrections (DOC). She announced
that the state was facing a $4 billion revenue shortfall.

Al aska was housing prisoners at a cost of approxinmately
$142 per day. She stated that in ten years the popul ation
in the state had grown 10 percent, while incarceration
rated were up 20 percent. She stated that the conmttee had
invested in a study to attenpt to manage the DOC budget .

Co-Chair Kelly echoed Co-Chair MacKinnon remarks. He
expressed interest in nore information about the crimna

justice system He wondered if the group could create a new
idea for corrections or were the ideas based on what
already exists. He also queried the system in which a
person would be indicted. He felt that the prosecutor nmay
only be enhancing their own resune, by incarcerating people
that may not need to be in prison.

10: 29: 04 AM

M. Bryner felt that the examnation of the history of
crimnal justice was accurate. He stated that the prison
system in primtive times was nuch different than the
present day. The system had evolved and becone nore
sophi sti cat ed.

10: 34: 36 AM
AT EASE

10: 38: 58 AM
RECONVENED

10: 38: 58 AM

Senator Dunleavy wondered if there was an exam nation of
those who were in jail for marijuana offenses would be

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 09/ 15/15 10: 03 A M



released, wth their record expunged. He queried the
| egalization of marijuana on the crimnal justice system
M. Bryner replied that the comm ssion had not specifically
focused on marijuana, because it was an issue that was in
pr ogr ess.

Co-Chair Kelly remarked that there was a nyth about the
nunber of individuals who were incarcerated for marijuana-
related offenses. He recalled that there were exactly zero
in prison at the time of the marijuana |egislation
di scussi on.

Senator Dunleavy felt that the outcomes of the marijuana
di scussions could have an inpact on the front of the
system He felt that legalization nay alleviate the burden
of the court and enforcenent systenms. M. Bryner replied
that the details were pre and post-trial procedures, which
were layers of how marijuana legalization inpacted the
system

Co- Chair MacKinnon shared that there were sone people
online and in the audience that would contribute to the
presentati on.

10: 45: 07 AM

M. Schust er di scussed the presentation, "The  Pew
Charitable Trusts; Alaska Prison Gowh Drivers and Costs"”
(copy on file). He stated that the presentation would focus
on the driver of the growmh in Al aska's prison popul ation.

M. Schuster |ooked at slide 1, "Prison Population Up 27
percent in Last Decade." He noted the prison population had
grown three tines as fast as the resident population of the
st at e.

M. Schuster highlighted slide 2, "Prison Population is
Hal f Sentenced O fenders, Half Supervision Violators and
Pretrial Defendants":

Supervi sion Violator: 22 percent
Pretrial: 28 percent
Sent enced: 50 percent

10: 46: 45 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 09/ 15/ 15 10: 03 A M



M. Schuster addressed slide 3, "Largest Gowh Anong
Pretrial Inmates.” He stated that there was growth anong
all three inmte types. He noted that the sentenced
of fenders increased by 14 percent from July 1, 2005 to
2014. The pretrial offenders increased by 81 percent. The
supervi sion violator had grown 15 percent during that tine.
He stated that conm ssion was attenpting to understand the
cause of the prisoner population growh, so the |egislature
may be able to identify the policies that nmay be necessary
to avoid future grow h.

Senat or Hof fman wondered if there was data related to the
separate areas of the state. M. Schuster replied that he
had sone raw data, but agreed to provide that information.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon agreed that the data about the separate
areas of the state would be helpful to the commttee.

M. Schuster highlighted slide 4, "Pretrial Defendants Mke
Up 28 percent of Alaska’s Prison Population.” He restated
that the pretrial population had grown 81 percent.

M. Schuster |ooked at slide 5, "Number of Pretrial
Def endants Up 81 percent in Last Decade.” He renarked that
nost of the growth in the pretrial population had occurred
over the previous five years. He stressed that nore people
may be getting arrested or people may be staying for |onger
periods of time before rel ease or hearings.

10: 50: 00 AM

M. Schuster addressed slide 6, "Pretrial Adm ssions Down
13 percent, But Still High Nunbers of Nonvi ol ent
M sdeneanor Admi ssions.” The bar on the left represented
2005 and the right represented 2014. He explained the
colors of the graph.

M. Schuster displayed slide 7, "Average Pretrial Length of
Stay Up." He explained the colors of the bar graph. He
noted that people were staying much |onger pretrial than
ten years prior.

Co-Chair Kelly queried the inpact on outcones after the
al l omance for nore days in jail. M. Schuster replied that
there was sone recent research regarding outcones for
simlar defendants who stayed for Ilonger and shorter
periods of tinme. He announced that, across the board, the

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 09/ 15/ 15 10: 03 A M



| onger people stay detained pretrial, the worse the
outcone. He stated that the act of being detained itself,
was disruptive to peoples' lives, therefore the individua
becones |l ess and | ess stable in society.

10: 55: 36 AM

Senat or Dunl eavy wondered if there was a |link between those
with a higher inconme and those wth a higher inconme. M.
Schuster responded that the link was not tied to their
success rate, but it was tied to their ability to pay bail.

Senator Dunl eavy wondered if there was evidence supporting
the idea that individuals had a better chance of receiving
a lower bail, if they prove to have a steady job. M.
Schuster responded that the bulk of the research was
related to assessing risk. He stated that the Dbest
predictor of risk were related to previous crinme, or not
showing up to court in the past. He stated that enpl oynent
and stable residence were only sonewhat predictive, but
were weighted |less than the static factors.

Co-Chair MacKinnon felt that the prison population may
beconme resentful to those that were to be rel eased, so they
would initiate an altercation to prevent the person from
being released. M. Schuster responded that the issue nmay
be related to the living situations within the facilities.
He shared that the focus of the study was not related to
t he operati ons.

11: 00: 20 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon surm sed that the review did not include
the length of stay by the last thirty days of incarceration
to determne a spike in nunber. M. Schuster replied that
the data was not related to the disciplinary records.

Co- Chair MacKinnon wanted to contact DOC regarding that
assertion.

M. Schuster discussed slide 8, "Sentenced O fenders Make
Up 50 Percent of Alaska's Prison Population.” He remarked
that the nunber of sentenced inmates had also increased
remar kably over the decade.

M. Schuster |ooked at slide 9, "Nunber of Sentenced
lnmates UP 14 Percent in Last Decade." He stated that the

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 09/ 15/15 10: 03 A M



anal ysis of growmh exam ned the nunber of people entering
the system as sentenced offenders, and the length of stay
on their sentences. He noted that fewer people cane into
prison the previous year than ten years prior. He stressed
that the growth was not caused by nore people comng into
prison. The growth was caused by people staying for |onger
peri ods of time.

M. Schuster addressed slide 10, "Despite Declines, 82
Percent of Prison Adm ssion Are M sdeneanants.” He shared
that over 6500 people cane into prison on a nonviolent
m sdeneanor offense. He shared that 82 percent of al
prison adm ssions in 2014 were for non-felony offenses.

Senat or Dunl eavy wondered if these nunbers included all of
the offenses for one person. M. Schuster replied that
peopl e often were incarcerated for various charges, but the
chart represented the nost serious offense.

Senat or Dunl eavy asked if the data would not be include in
the property category. M. Schuster replied that people
were only counted once.

11: 05:14 AM

Senator Dunleavy queried the reason length of stay
increase. He wondered if it was related to sentencing
discretion or legislation to increase sentencing. M.
Schuster responded that it was probably a conbination. He
remar ked that there were sentencing changes over the recent
ten years.

Senator Hoffman queried sonme exanples of nonviolent
of fenses, and wondered if there was an exam nation of "dry
villages" versus "wet villages." He specifically wondered
if the nonviolent offenses were in rural or urban Al aska.
M. Schuster replied with slide 11, and stated that the
chart only captured felony alcohol offenses. He furthered
t hat he had not conducted a study based on region.

M. Schuster highlighted slide 11, "Felony Length of Stay
Up Across Nonviolent O fense Categories.”" He noted that
felony alcohol offenses were nostly driving under the
i nfluence (DU ).

M. Schuster discussed slide 12, "Felony Length of Stay up
17 Percent for Person OOfenders; 86 Percent for Sex

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 09/ 15/15 10: 03 A M



O fenders.” He noted significant changes in sentencing for
the types of offenses over the decade. He stated that the
slide showed conservative estimates for average |ength of
st ay, but did not include individuals who received
sentenced that were so long that they had not yet been
rel eased. He restated that the average length of stay only
included those that were released. He stated that the
average lengths of stay would increase, if the |onger
sentences were included. He restated that sentenced inmates
made up one-half of the Al aska prison population, and had
increased substantially over tinme. The vast mgjority of
i ndi viduals who canme to prison as sentenced offenders were
sentenced for non-felony behavior. He stressed that |engths
of stay for nonviolent and violent behaviors had al

i ncreased over tinme.

11: 09: 46 AM
M. Schuster |ooked at slide 13, "Supervision Violators
make Up 22 Percent of Alaska's Prison Population." He

stated that alnpbst one quarter of +the current prison
popul ati on were supervision violators.

M. Schuster displayed slide 14, "Nunber of Supervision
Violators Up 15 Percent in Last Decade." He stated that the
slide showed a snapshot of the prison nunbers of
supervision violators on July 1, 2005 and July 1, 2014.

M. Schust er addressed slide 15, "Nearly Half of
Revocations Staying Mre Than One Mnth; 29 Percent More
Than Three Moinths." The chart showed a study of a count of
t he nunber of people who canme into prison on a probation or
parol e revocation, and was broken down by the length of
prison revocati on.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered how Al aska's probation system
may differ from other states. She renmarked that other
states nay al so have graduated systens for relocations. M.
Schuster replied that there were various supervision
strategies to reduce recidivism

11:14: 28 AM

Co-Chair Kelly wondered if there was a correlation between
t he nunber of sentenced people and the |length of sentence.
M. Schuster attenpted to respond.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 09/ 15/15 10: 03 A M



Co-Chair Kelly asked if there was a correlation between the
nunber of incarcerated individuals and the Choose Respect
Canpai gn. M. Schuster deferred to M. Bryner.

Co-Chair Kelly noted the increase in 2010. He wondered if
there was a correlation between that increase and the
Choose Respect Canmpaign. He remarked that there was
approximately $17 million allocated for that canpaign. M.
Bryner replied that he did not have a recollection of
anyone drawi ng that correl ation.

Senat or Dunl eavy wondered if juveniles were included in the
data. M. Schuster replied that juveniles were only
included if they were charged and convicted as adults.

Senat or Dunl eavy queried the nunber of those individuals.
M. Schuster replied that it was a very small nunber; in
the single digits.

M. Schuster discussed slide 16, "Alnost Two-Thirds of
O fenders Released Return to Prison Wthin Three Years." He
noted that in 2002, there was a 71 percent recidivismrate.
He pointed out that only 63 percent of people released in
2011 returned to prison by or before FY 14. He noted that
reci di vism had reduced since 2005. He stated that there was
substantial research on what works to reduce recidivism
anong offenders. He noted that there were different types
of supervision strategies and intervention into peoples

lives. He remarked that Alaska had taken nmany steps to
incorporate the strategies into their current practices. He
furthered that 63 percent was still a high nunber, so the
comm ssion would consider additional policy changes that
could go further to change offendi ng behavi or.

Co-Chair Kelly wondered how nuch of recidivism was
probation violations. He asked if recidivism was a
probation violation or another crinme. M. Schuster replied
that this definition of recidivism was a broad definition,
and included any return to prison.

11: 20: 10 AM

Co-Chair Kelly asked if the recidivismrate was higher than
other states. He also asked if the probation officers were
doing a proper job, and whether they needed further
training. M. Schuster replied that it was difficult to

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 09/ 15/15 10: 03 A M



conpare Alaska to other states, because other states had
counti es.

Co-Chair Kelly wondered what the high nunber of recidivism
could be conpared against. M. Schuster responded that,
objectively, 63 percent was a high nunber. He stated that
it was difficult to conpare it to national rates or other
states' rates. He remarked that in the last three years,
there was a two-third recidivismrate.

Co-Chair Kelly agreed that it was a hi gh nunber.

M. Schuster |ooked at slide 17, "Spending on Corrections
Up 60 Percent Over Past 2 Decades." He stated that the
graph |ooked at the operating expenses. He renmarked that
DOC was not solely responsible for the population. He
remarked that there was a 60 percent increase over two
decades in the operating budget for DOC

Co- Chair MacKinnon noted that the slide was adjusted for
inflation, and did not include capital expenditures. M.
Schuster clarified that only the percentage increase was
adjusted for inflation.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon surm sed that the slide only represented
operating expenditures. M. Schuster agreed.

M. Schuster highlighted slide 18, "Absent Further Reform
Prison Population Projected to Gow 27 Percent, Costing At
Least $169 MIlion." He remarked that the slide | ooked back
ten years and |ooked forward ten years, at the average
daily population in Alaska's prisons. He noted that there
was an anticipated growh of over 1400 prison beds in the
upcomi ng ten years. The dotted line represented the current
bed capacity. He stressed that the projected prison growth
woul d exceed the capacity.

11:25:28 AM

Senat or Hof fman queried what the cost per bed for instate
and out of state. M. Schuster replied that the cost was
$100 per day for an out of state bed, conpared to $142 per

day for instate beds. He furthered that there were
substanti al transportation costs for out of state
prisoners.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 09/ 15/15 10: 03 A M



Co-Chair MacKinnon remarked that she would like nore
information on the data for the reason behind the region
that may be driving the growh. M. Schuster replied that
the cost of a prison that would accommpdate 1400 additi onal
beds may be close to the cost of the Goose Creek facility.

M. Schuster addressed slide 19, "Next Steps":

Al aska Crimnal Justice Conm ssion policy devel opnent

nmeet i ngs
—Sept. 9-10
—Cct. 14-15
—Nov. 18-19

Report and recommendati ons fromthe Comm ssion
—Dec. 10

11: 28: 04 AM

Senator Hof fman | ooked at the projected growth. He wondered
if there were any nunbers on the Al aska Natives.

M. Bryner replied that there were a nunber of
circunst ances between the rural areas of Al aska and urban
centers of Alaska. He felt that there were sone economc
factors and conditions that went into the growi ng prison
popul ati ons.

Senator Hoffman wondered if the growh rate assuned that
one-third of the population in 2024 would continue to be
Al aska Natives. M. Schuster replied that he did not have a
denogr aphi ¢ breakdown.

11:35: 01 AM

Senator Hoffrman asked for a calculation related to the
Al aska Natives in the prison system M. Schuster agreed to
provi de that information.

Senat or Dunl eavy queried the |link between juvenile offense
and the current data. M. Schuster replied that he did not
have that data. It was difficult to receive juvenile
adj udi cation history. He stated that it was known that past
behavi or was a good predictor of future behavior.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 09/ 15/ 15 10: 03 A M



Senat or Dunl eavy asked how to receive the juvenile data. He
hoped to develop possible early intervention. M. Schuster
replied that there would need to be new request for
crimnal history.

Senator Bishop felt that alcohol and drug rehabilitation
should be a focus of the legislature. He noted that the
state should focus on job training to the reduce prison
popul ation. M. Schuster responded that the commi ssion had
conversations regardi ng how noney was spent.

11:40: 49 AM

Co-Chair Kelly encouraged the comm ssion to study Fetal
Al cohol Spectrum Di sorder (FASD), and its preval ence in the
crimnal justice system He wondered if there was an effort
to ensure that people exiting prison had a general
education diploma (GED) or high school diploma. He queried
the cost of the inplenentation of a GED program in the
prison, and the tutors necessary to educate the prisoners.
He understood that the state may need to absorb the cost.
M. Bryner replied that the commission was aware of the
issue of FASD, but it was difficult to track those
individuals. He felt that the issue could be related to
nmental health treatnent, which may be beyond scope of the
comm ssion. He furthered that reducing recidivism through
education was very inportant. He stressed that there nust
be investnent in a workable system but understood that the
state did not have the financial resources to nake
i mredi ate reinvestnent. The state nust be resourceful, and
he felt that a GED program would provide trenendous
assistance. He felt that the comunities may be able to
provi de the funding for a GED program

11:46: 12 AM

Co-Chair Kelly shared that a group was recently created to
eradicate FASD, and the group would be return to the
Institute of G rcunpolar Health in Cctober 2015. That group
had a network of scientists to address the issue. He stated
that he had an enployee that could assist in studying the
impact of FASD wthin the justice system M. Bryner
appreciated that information. He announced that the
comm ssion was entirely based on public process. Al the
data and project information was available to the public.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 12 09/ 15/ 15 10: 03 A M



The conm ssion wel coned comments and information regarding
any devel opnents that would reveal studies to reflect.

M. Schuster shared that the comm ssion had conducted
outreach to different stakeholder groups in the state to
involve the communities across the state as the policies
devel op. He explained that there were sone policies related
to reducing the prison lengths of stay or other policies
about incentives.

11:50: 07 AM

Senator Hof fman echoed Senator Bishop's remarked regarding
the rural Alaska, and the issue of alcohol. He felt that
the laws in the dry communities were not properly enforced,
because al cohol was still in those comunities.

Senat or Dunl eavy renarked that substance abuse often |ead
to crimnal behavior. He wanted to focus on juvenile
behavi or, because he felt that it would save nobney at a
| ater date. He encouraged data related to substance abuse
and juvenile activity.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon t hanked t he committee and t he
presenters.

#
ADJ QURNVENT
11:54: 35 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 11:54 a.m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 13 09/ 15/15 10: 03 A M



